
GLEN ROCK PLANNING BOARD 

Minutes of the September 5, 2019 Meeting 

7:30 PM 

 

In attendance:  Robert VanLangen, Chairman, Mayor Bruce Packer, John Thielke and 

Gino Reina. Also in attendance was Spencer Rothwell, Esq., Board Attorney. 

 

The Board Secretary called the roll and read the Sunshine Law. 

 

Old Business: 

 

None 
 

New Business: 

 

Discussion and possible recommendation regarding the reexamination of the Master Plan.  

In addition, discussion regarding immediate recommendation to the Mayor and Council 

to commence contracting to update the Borough Tax Map and Zoning Map prior to the 

Master Plan reexamination.   

 

Mr. VanLangen stated the primary purpose of this meeting is to discuss items that have 

still to be addressed from the Reexamination of the Master Plan and recommendation to 

the Mayor and Council concerning the tax map and Zoning map of the Borough. 

 

Mr. VanLangen stated that it is frustrating when discussing economic development and 

growth for the Borough that the tax map is not up to date.  He referred to Mr. Snieckus’ 

February 2019 review letter on the status of the goals listed in the 2014 reexamination. 

 

When the Board met in March, it was decided that a new reexamination of the Master 

Plan was not needed at this time, but the Board should look at what goals had not yet 

been met from the 2014 reexamination and recommend to the Mayor and Council that 

they move towards fulfilling those goals.   

 

Mr. VanLangen stated that the tax maps have not been revised in almost 25 years and that 

they are not digitized, which would provide much needed information when discussing 

plans for the future of the Borough. 

 

Mrs. Spiller stated that a new reexamination is required every 10 years, so the next 

reexamination would be due 2024 and a new Master Plan would be required in 2027, 25 

years after the 2002 Master Plan.  Mr. VanLangen suggested that just doing a new plan in 

2024 would be prudent, but that will be decided at a later time. 

 

Mr. VanLangen stated it is imperative that the Board remind the Council of the urgency 

of updating the tax maps and working towards other goals in the reexamination.   

 

 



Glen Rock Planning Board 

Minutes of the September 5, 2019 Meeting 

Pg. 2 of 3 

 

Mr. VanLangen asked the Mayor if these issues have been discussed at the Council level.  

Mayor Packer responded that the Council has been concentrating on affordable housing 

goals and working with the Court Master to arrive at a settlement that both the Court and 

the Borough can live with.  Any discussions regarding zoning have had to include the 

affordable housing negotiations.  Mayor Packer added that he hopes they are close to a 

settlement regarding the affordable housing court negotiations and that would allow the 

Council to move onto other pending matters.   

 

Mayor Packer agreed that, since hopefully they are close to a settlement regarding 

affordable housing, this would be a good time for the Planning Board to remind the 

Council of the objectives in the reexamination and how the Council can assist to that end.   

 

Mr. VanLangen questioned Mr. Rothwell about the aftermath of the overturned Zoning 

Board approval of the age restricted housing project.  He asked should the Planning 

Board be recommending various parcels that should be looked out for expansion of what 

is permitted on those properties.  Mr. Rothwell stated that what Mr. VanLangen is 

describing is an overlay zone, and that is a tool, in addition to changing the zone for 

particular properties.   

 

Mr. VanLangen would like the Planning Board and ultimately the Mayor and Council to 

be more proactive rather than reactive, in planning for future development.   

 

He also stated that he would like to identify properties that would be good for 

redevelopment and contact the owners of those properties and see what would be needed 

to get them to consider redevelopment. 

 

Mayor Packer stated that since he has become Mayor in 2016 there have been parcels 

available for redevelopment, but because there is no vacant land, any discussions would 

have to include affordable housing.  He stated that the council has been constrained with 

fulfilling the affordable housing requirements, that it is difficult to focus on other 

planning matters without including an affordable housing element. 

 

While Mr. VanLangen stated that certain properties should be earmarked for 

redevelopment, Mrs. Spiller warned that privately owned properties should not be singled 

out, but rather a general statement of a particular need should be noted. 

 

Mr. VanLangen stressed that the Borough should be proactive in making letting it be 

known what types of uses are needed in the community and actively going after those 

types of uses and businesses through aggressive marketing. 

 

Mayor Packer stated that the Council has contracted with an outside firm to review our 

Borough Codes and make recommendations as to needed changes. 



 

Glen Rock Planning Board 

Minutes of the September 5, 2019 Meeting 

Pg. 3 of 4 

 

Mr. VanLangen stated that strong zoning ordinances and a clear zoning plan are 

important. 

 

Mayor Packer strongly advised the Planning Board to send a letter to the Council 

outlining what objectives of the Master Plan have not been met and prioritizing those 

objectives in perhaps a 1 year, 5 year and 10 year time frame. 

 

Mr. VanLangen stated he wants the Borough to update the tax and zoning maps and 

perhaps have them digitized to offer additional information, which would assist in zoning 

objectives in the future.  Mayor Packer stated our Borough Engineer is in the process of 

working up a proposal to present to the Council.  He stated this should be included in the 

letter to the Council. 

 

Mr. Reina stated the biggest hurdle for new businesses coming into town is rent.  The 

Council should work towards either assisting in reducing expenses for businesses as 

permitted by law, or assist in increasing revenue through marketing.  The bottom line is 

that people from outside of Glen Rock must shop at Glen Rock stores to make them 

profitable enough to continue.  He stated it is important to have a contact person for 

prospective businesses to communicate their needs and how to achieve them by coming 

into Glen Rock. 

 

Mr. Thielke questioned if other towns have incentives for businesses to come into town.  

Mr. Rothwell stated some have areas in need of redevelopment, but short of that, 

Boroughs are prohibited from giving tax reductions.  Glen Rock has no such areas that 

are so desperate for redevelopment.   

 

There was agreement that have someone or some organization whose primary purpose 

would be to show Glen Rock in a positive light, highlight its strengths, and assist and 

encourage potential businesses to come to Glen Rock would go a long way to fulfilling 

our objectives.   

 

Mr. Reina stated that loyalty to stores is what keeps them in business.   

 

Mrs. Spiller stated that there is only certain business that will flourish- eateries, personal 

services, things you can’t purchase on Amazon.  Mayor Packer added niche stores which 

give personal service prosper, such as the Shade store and Irish store in town. 

 

Mr. VanLangen stated we should encourage downtown businesses to keep their 

properties looking updated and fresh. 

 

 



Glen Rock Planning Board 

Minutes of the September 5, 2019 Meeting 

Pg. 4 of 4 

 

 

Mayor Packer again stated he thinks the way to go is to have a company or individual 

whose sole responsibility is the marketing and interest of businesses in town. 

 

Mr. VanLangen reminded that we have 5 business districts and should look out after all 

5, not just the downtown area. 

 

Mayor Packer suggested staring with the downtown district and moving to other districts 

in the future.  Mrs. Spiller added that the downtown area is the one most in need in that it 

has several empty storefronts.  Mr. Thielke stated a discussion on adding parking must be 

included. 

 

Mayor Packer stated that the parking committee has been active in “finding” new parking 

spots in the downtown area and that recently 30-40 employee spaces have been added.  

Shopper and commuter parking needs are next on the agenda. 

 

As there was nothing further on the agenda, Mr. VanLangen asked if anyone in the 

audience had any comments or questions. 

 

Mr. Ben Meyers, 70 Valley Road, co-chair of the Environmental Commission, stated the 

Commission was to be a part of any continuing discussions regarding the objectives of 

the Master Plan.  As a resident, he has strong concerns regarding storm drains.  He stated 

that the storm drain system which includes areas of Central School, Broad St/ Hamilton 

Avenue and Valley Road/Glen Rock Mall need to be seriously looked at as it is 

inadequate.  This results in unacceptable pooling.  He suggests adding this to the Master 

Plan discussions.  Mr. Meyers stated he has been in contact with the Borough Engineer 

and DPW supervisor.  Mr. VanLangen suggested the drains should be checked for 

obstructions. 

 

As there was nothing further before the Board, the meeting was adjourned at 8:35 PM. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

Nancy Spiller 

Board Secretary 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

Nancy Spiller 

Board Secretary 


